

Live diary - Online consultant booking API v2.0

Version History

2.0 - 27 March 2025 - Initial 2.0 C2/Kick re-write 11 April 2025 - Added referral letters feature

Contents

Live diary - Online consultant booking API v2.0	1
Introduction	2
Getting started	3
Enhancements over version 1.x	3
Try out using Postman	
API Overview	
Consultant/InitialAndFollowUpAppointments API	10
Consultant/Details API	
Consultant/Availability API	
Booking/DiaryBooking API	
Booking/AppointmentEnquiry API	
Referral Letters	
Description	
Example client side React - Base64 file capture	

Introduction

Welcome to version 2 of the HCA Healthcare UK - Online Consultant Booking API.

Our API is linked to the HCA Healthcare UK CRM which allows the caller to discover HCA consultants and a given consultant's time and location availability for appointment slots at HCA facilities. The API caller can then book a selected slot.

Version 1 of the API was initially developed for use by our own consultant finder app embedded on the hcahealthcare.co.uk website, and during 2024 we shared the API with partners who had an interest in harnessing this functionality programmatically.

We worked with partners and have listened to feedback, and in collaboration with our CRM development team partners, we built out version 2, a more B2B friendly version of the API.

The API contains general 'discovery' endpoints as well as specific consultant endpoints which can be called in order, to discover and complete a booking.



Getting started

To get started, first request a meeting to discuss requirements with the HCA digital team. If the API is appropriate, you can then obtain a sandbox API key.

To start development and integration, work with the Sandbox API instance using the Swagger open API definition as follows:

Swagger (sandbox/UAT) - API definition: <u>HCA OCB API</u> Production base URL endpoint <u>https://hcauks-prod-digital-app.azurewebsites.net/</u> (note there is no swagger at this address, but the API interface is the same as UAT)

In the HTTP request headers, **pass in the HCA allocated key** e.g.: X-WebApi-Key: <HCA Allocated Key>

If an incorrect key is used, then an HTTP 401 Unauthorized error will occur, with a JSON body response showing a success property of false.

Note that data wise, sandbox is **not a mirror of prod** - there is generally less consultant availability mapped, but the API functionality is the same. Someone like Andrew Goldberg is generally a good candidate to develop and test with GMC: 4113571

Enhancements over version 1.x

There are minimal changes to make to update an implementation from v1 to v2 from a client caller perspective and the upgrade path offers some advantages as follows:

- 1. Backward compatible with v1.x
- 2. **Performance acceleration** Behind the scenes, the API is quite transactional and business logic intensive, this means that users can suffer long wait times on calls. We put a lot of energy into a re-write of the slower workings of the system to bring a 2-3 times faster benefit in version 2 compared to version 1. Note that we are always looking to improve performance, and we will continue to optimize where possible.
- 3. Swagger API definition the interface of the API is now discoverable through an Open API swagger definition at <u>HCA OCB API</u>.
- 4. Ability to request indicative information around a single or group of consultants It is now possible to ask for top level details for a consultant or group of consultants via an array of GMC numbers. This makes it possible to line up a group of consultants in an upstream B2B system with the consultants on the HCA side. We detail if the consultant/s are live or in test on online consultant booking, and when their next earliest appointment time is. This call could be used to show a grid of consultants and sort by the next available appointment time.
- 5. Ability for a patient to initiate an appointment enquiry. An endpoint has been added to cover the use case of a patient wishing to enquire about booking an appointment. This endpoint powers the enquire now form which is used when a consultant doesn't have online consultant booking enabled, i.e. no firm time slot can be discovered for the consultant as their diary is not on-line. The patient provides indicative information around their availability and their call back details. The HCA contact centre will then call the patient back to firm up an appointment.
- 6. Future enhancements. Enhancements will be made on the v2 API only going forward v1 will not receive these.

Note for existing API users: whilst we are keeping the v1 endpoints running in parallel, they will be deprecated at some point in time, so please consider upgrading to v2.

Try out using Postman

Integrators tend to find it is useful to try out the API using Postman before committing to full scale development.

Install and set up **Postman**

- 1.) Create a new collection by
- 2.) Using the Import button in the workspace section, download the swagger <u>HCA OCB API Swagger Definition</u> and import it into Postman
- 3.) Setup the Authorization like this..

Workspace	New Import	GET Determines if the API is I GET Details for spec	cified con C2.HCA.XRM.Api •	+
+ =	000	C2.HCA.XRM.Api		🖺 Save
 HCA Search API 1.0 Live Diary Booking Live Diary Booking C2 Imple _OldSharepointTest Address Search 	★ ★ eme ★	Overview Authorization • Scripts Va This authorization method will be used for even Auth Type ADI Key	ariables • Runs	e this by speci
 C2.HCA.XRM.Api api Booking Consultant Availability Details GET Details for specific terms 	ecified c	The authorization header will be automatical Learn more about <u>API Key</u> authorization. Heads up! These parameters hold sensi while working in a collaborative environ Learn more about <u>variables</u> .	ly generated when you send the request. Itive data. To keep this data secure X ment,we recommend using variables.	
 InitialAndFollowU HealthCheck IsOnline GET Determines if careers CareersTest 	JpAppoi the API i	Key Value Add to	X-WebApi-Key <my key=""> Header</my>	
> Cham				

Set up the base url - use the sandbox url - https://hcauks-uat-digital-app.azurewebsites.net/

$=$ \leftarrow	$ ightarrow$ Home Workspaces \checkmark API Network	rk	Q Search Postman	🚫 🔑 Invite 🔯 🗘 🚫	Upgrade 🗸 🗕
🖒 My Worl	kspace New Import	GET Determines if the API is I GET Details for specified	con C2.HCA.XRM.Api • 🗋 IsOnline	+	✓ 🕅 No environment ✓
	+ = 000	C2.HCA.XRM.Api		음 Save 🕨 Run 약 Fork 0	
	≻ HCA Search API 1.0 ★ Live Diary Booking	Overview Authorization • Scripts Variabl	es • Runs		
o(a	 > Live Diary Booking C2 Impleme ★ > _OldSharepointTest 	These variables are specific to this collection and it	s requests. Learn more about collection variables		
Plows	> Address Search	Q Filter variables			
APIs	✓ C2.HCA.XRM.Api	Variable	Initial value	Current value	889
	 Booking 	baseUrl	https://hcauks-uat-digital-app.azurewebsites.net/	https://hcauks-uat-digital-app.azurewebsites.n	iet/
ock servers	> AppointmentEnquiry	Add new variable			
An Monitors					

There is a HealthCheck call to test the connectivity

	kspace New Import	GET Determines if tI GET Details for spec	C2.HCA.XRM.# •	Online + ~ 🕅 No environment
Collections	+	GET ~ {{baseUrl}}/api	/ IsOnline / Determines if the Al	Pl is running. 🖺 Save 🗸 Share
nvironments ¤(a Flows	 > Live Diary Booking C2 Impleme ★ > _OldSharepointTest > Address Search 	Params • Auth Headers (9) Boo	dy Scripts Settings	Cookie
00	✓ C2.HCA.XRM.Api	Key	Value	Description ••• Bulk Edit
APIs	∽ 🗋 api	ValidateConnection	true	
Iock servers	Booking AppointmentEnquiry DiaryBooking Our in the second	Key	Value	Description
4 History □+	 Consultant Availability Details GET Details for specified c InitialAndFollowUpAppoi 			
History		Body ~ ①	200 OK = 2	81 ms = 796 B = 🤀 🖭 Save Response 🔹
€ History #+	 Consultant Availability Details GET Details for specified c InitialAndFollowUpAppoi HealthCheck IsOnline GET Determines if the API i 	Body ∨ ① {} JSON ∨ ▷ Preview 🔞 \	200 OK = 2 /isualize ~	81 ms = 796 B = 😤 📧 Save Response =

Broadly, the flow is get the consultant details using the GMC/Professional Id

,	> HCA Search API 1.0 \star			
	> Live Diary Booking	GET v {{baseUrl}}/api/Consultant/Details?HCACons	sultantID=4113571&InitialAppointment=&FollowOnAppointme	.nt=yes S
ts	> Live Diary Booking C2 Impleme ★	Params Authorization Headers (10) Body Scripts	Settings	
	> _OldSharepointTest	Query Params		
	> Address Search			
	✓ C2.HCA.XRM.Api	Key Key	Value	Description ***
	✓ ☐ api	HCAConsultantID	4113571	
	✓ ☐ Booking	InitialAppointment		
15	> 🗎 AppointmentEnquiry	FollowOnAppointment	yes	
	> 🗎 DiaryBooking	Kev	Value	Description
	✓ Consultant			
	✓ ☐ Availability	Body Cookies (2) Headers (7) Test Results		200 OK • 1.67 s • 1.13 KB • 🕀 👀 Save Re
	> GET Availability for specifie	{} JSON ~ > Preview 🚷 Visualize ~		
	> GET Availability for specifie	1 5		
	✓ 🗁 Details	2 "HCAConsultantId": "GOLDAND",		
	GET Details for specified c	3 "CRMID": "66c7e5cf-bd4e-ed11-bba3-000d3ad	4elfb",	
	 InitialAndFollowUpAppoi 	5 "professionalRegistrationNumber": "411357	1",	
	✓ ➡ HealthCheck	6 "professionalLicenceType": "", 7 "providerMainSpecialty": "Orthogaedics (S	urd)"	
	✓ 📄 IsOnline	<pre>8 "title": "Mr", 9 "firstName": "Andrew Julian".</pre>		
	> GET Determines if the API i	10 "lastName": "Goldberg",		
	> careers	11 "liveDiaryBookingAvailable": true, 12 "availability": [
	CorporeTect	12 5		

Get slot availability for the given consultant at a location given in the consultant details, specifying a from and to date range and follow on appointment type set to "yes" or "no"

്റ് My Work	kspace New Import	GET Determines if the API is I GET Details for specified con C2.HCA.XRM.Api • GET Availability for s	specified + V 🖹 No environment V
	+ =	m C2.HCAXRM.Api / api / Consultant / Availability / Availability for specified consultant.	🗂 Save 👻 Share
Environments	HCA Search API 1.0 ★ Live Diary Booking C2 Impleme ★	GET ((baseUrl))/api/Consultant/Availability?HCAConsultantID=&ConsultantGUID=&&ConsultantatGUID=&&ConsultantGUID=&&ConsultatGUID=&&ConsultatGUID=&&Consul	:f-bd4e-ed11-bba3-000d3ad4e1fb&DateFrom=2025-02-24&Dr ⁺⁺⁺⁺
Plows	 _OldSharepointTest Address Search 	DateTo DateTo DateTo	COOKIES
APIs	 ✓ C2.HCA.XRM.Api ✓ □ api ✓ □ Deaking 	LocationGUID Sdd69ee7-20a6-ed11-aad1-6045bd1	0f3ee
Mock servers	Booking AppointmentEnquiry DiaryBooking	InitialAppointment ImitialAppointment ImitialAppointment	
4) History	Consultant Availability o∈T Availability for specifie	Key Value Body Cookies (2) Headers (7) Test Results ① 10 FOOL or S Description SO Manualization Image: So Manualization	Description 200 OK → 1.06 s → 454 B → 😤 🖼 Save Response 🚥
	 CEL Availability for specifie CET Availability for specifie CET Details for specified c CHINELAR FOLOWUPAPpol CHEALTCHECK CET Detamines if the API i CareersTest Cham 	<pre>{} JSON < > Preview % Visualize < 1 { 2</pre>	∍ u Q ∂

Create a diary booking for a given slot, posting the details to the body of the request (note the use of "yes" and "no" values for followOnAppointment and initialAppointment rather than booleans...

	+ = 000	C2.HCA.XRM.Api / api / Booking / DiaryBooking / Creates a diary booking and sends an email to confirm the booking.
liections	> HCA Search API 1.0	
0.	> Live Diary Booking	POST v {{baseUrl}} /api/Booking/DiaryBooking
ronments	> Live Diary Booking C2 Implementation	Params Authorization Headers (13) Body e Scripts Settings
°(°	> _OldSharepointTest	
lows	> Address Search	○ none ○ form-data ○ x-www-form-urlencoded ○ raw ○ binary ○ GraphQL JSON ∨
~~~	✓ C2.HCA.XRM.Api	1 [
APIs	✓  ☐ api	2 "hcaConsultantID": "4113571", 2 "fadilatuta": "cocup"
<u> </u>	✓ ➡ Booking	4 "patientCode": "X123456",
k servers	> P AppointmentEnguiry	5 "dateFrom": "2025-02-11T12:00:00",
AyA	✓ Pi DiarvBooking	7 "initialAppointment": "no",
onitors	POST Creates a diary booking and sends an email to	8 "visitReasonDetails": {
5		<pre>9 "reasonForAppointment": "222TEST-NEWAPI" 10 }.</pre>
listory	Call was successful	11 "demographics": {
	es. One or more of the provided request values	12 "selectedSpeciality": "Orthopaedics (Surg)",
00	es One or more of the requested entities was n	13 "previouslyBeenWithHCA": true, 14 "title": "Mr".
0+	es. Conflict	15 "firstName": "ZZZTEST",
	FE Creates a diary booking and sends an amail	16 "lastName": "ZZZTEST",
	Creates a diary booking and sends an email	17 "gender": "Male",
	> POST Creates a diary booking and sends an email to	18 "date0fBirth": "2000-01-01",
	> POST Creates a diary booking and sends an email to	20 "phone": "5555555555",
	> POST Creates a diary booking and sends an email to	21 "address1": "ZZZTEST",
	➤ P Consultant	22 "address2": "ZZZTEST",
		23 townoity: 2221ESI, 24 "metcode": "2221EST"
	✓ ☐ Availability	25 "country": "ZZTEST",
	<ul> <li>GET Availability for specified consultant.</li> </ul>	26 "marketingPreferenceEmail": true,
	> GET Availability for specified consultant. Copy	27 "marketingPreferencePhone": false,
	✓ ➡ Details	20 marketingreferenceAst : false.
		30 "representativeTitle": "",
	<ul> <li>GET Details for specified consultant.</li> </ul>	31 "representativeFirstName": "",
	> 📄 InitialAndFollowUpAppointments	32 "representativeLastName": "",
	✓ ➡ HealthCheck	33 "representativeRelation": "",
		34 "representativeEmail": "",
	✓ ☐ IsOnline	Response (1) History ~
	> GET Determines if the API is running.	

# There is also a call that can fetch the surface level details of one or more consultants, Post in a list of consultants gmc numbers...

은 My Wor	space New Import	GET Determines if th GET Details for spec 🗍 C2.HCA.XRM.A • GET Availability for s GET Availability for s POST Returns availal POST Creates a bool Est Returns all cons +
Collections	+ =	C2.HCA.XRM.Api / api / Consultant / InitialAndFollowUpAppointments / Returns availability information for the one or more specified consultants.
Environments	HCA Search API 1.0	POST v ((baseUri)) /apl/Consultant/InitialAndFollowUpAppointments
वर्षु Flows APIs Mock servers Monitors History	<ul> <li>&gt; Live Diary Booking C2 Implementation</li> <li>★</li> <li>&gt; JoldSharepointTest</li> <li>&gt; Address Search</li> <li>&lt; C2.HCA.XRM.Api</li> <li>C2.HCA.XRM.Api</li> <li>C3.Bpi</li> <li>C4.Bpi</li> <li>C4.Bpi</li> <li>C4.Bpi</li> <li>C4.Bpi</li> <li>C4.Bpi</li> <li>C4.Bpi</li> <li>C4.Bpi</li> <li>C4.Bpi</li> <li>C5.Bpi</li> <li>C5.Bpi</li> <li>C6.Bpi</li> <li>C6.</li></ul>	Params       Authorization       Headers (13)       Body •       Scripts       Settings <ul> <li>none</li> <li>form-data</li> <li>x-www-form-undencoded</li> <li>raw</li> <li>binary</li> <li>GraphOL</li> <li>JSON ~</li> </ul> <li>1 {"consultants" : ["6664789", "7453884", "6677681", "6138868", "3291213", "3293775", "6182135", "2348766", "4538297", "3337888", "7849848"] }</li> <li>I</li> <li>Scripts</li> <li>Scripts</li>
	off Availability for specified consultant.     off Availability for specified consultant. Copy     Details     off Details     off Details for specified consultant.     Details for specified consultant.	Body         Cookies (2)         Headers (7)         Test Results         ①         200 OK         > 509 ms         769 B           {} JSON v         >         Preview         ⑦         Visualize
	<ul> <li>POST Returns availability information for the one or</li> <li>Call was successful</li> <li>One or more of the provided request values</li> <li>Returns availability information for the one o</li> <li>POST Returns availability information for all consulta</li> <li>Call was successful</li> <li>One or more of the provided request values</li> <li>Call was successful</li> <li>One or more of the provided request values</li> <li>Returns availability information for the one o</li> <li>POST Returns availability information for the one o</li> <li>Call was successful</li> <li>One or more of the provided request values</li> <li>Returns availability information for the one o</li> <li>Secondary of the one o</li> <li>Careers</li> <li>Careers</li> </ul>	<pre>90</pre>
	> Cham	111   ] 112 }

It is also possible to discover details of all consultants in the system by specifying an empty array in the InitialAndFollowUpAppointments call.

This call has the advantage that the caller can know which consultants are live and available by checking for "live": **true** without having to know GMC numbers in advance.

음 My Wor	kspace New Import	GET Determines if th GET Details for spec 🗍 C2.HCA.XRM.A • GET Availability for s GET Availability for s POST Returns availal POST Returns availal
Collections	+ =	🗰 C2.HCA.XRM.Api / api / Consultant / InitialAndFollowUpAppointments / Returns availability information for all consultants
	> HCA Search API 1.0 🖈	
۰.	> Live Diary Booking 🗶	POST v {{bseUr}}/api/Consultant/InitialAndFollowUpAppointments
Environments	> Live Diary Booking C2 Implementation	Dereme Authorization Llanders (12) Dedute Coriste Cattlere
0(0	> _OldSharepointTest	Params Authorization Headers (15) Doby - Scripts Settings
Flows	> Address Search	○ none ○ form-data ○ x-www-form-urlencoded ○ raw ○ binary ○ GraphQL JSON ∨
00	✓ C2.HCA.XRM.ADi	1 {"consultants" : [] }
APIs		
Mock servers		
44		
Monitors	POST Creates a booking enquiry.	
	> 📄 DiaryBooking	
History	✓ ☐ Consultant	
	✓ ☐ Availability	
00 0+	> GET Availability for specified consultant.	
	> GET Availability for specified consultant. Copy	
	✓ 🗁 Details	Body Cookies (2) Headers (7) Test Results (1) 20
	> GET Details for specified consultant.	
	✓ ☐ InitialAndFollowUpAppointments	{} JSON ∨ ▷ Preview 《⊘ Visualize ∨
	✓ POST Returns availability information for the one or	
	es Call was successful	3 {
		4 "initial_appointment": null,
	Returns availability information for the one o	6 "professionalRegistrationNumber": null,
	<ul> <li>POST Returns availability information for all consulta</li> </ul>	7 "professionalRegistrationType": "",
	les Call was successful	9 "refreshdate": null,
	E. One or more of the provided request values	10 "live": false,
	Rel Peturns availability information for the one o	12 "initial_appointment_minutes": null,
		13 "follow_appointment_minutes": null
		14 5, 15 {
		16 "initial_appointment": null,
	✓ ☐ IsOnline	17 "follow_appointment": null, 18 "professionalRegistrationNumber": "7508298",
	> GET Determines if the API is running.	19 "professionalRegistrationType": "TempValueForTesting",
	> careers	20 "mnemonic": "HEEKA", 21 "refearbdata": will
	> CareersTest	22 "live": null,

Note that this is an expensive call - so please use this sparingly! - it returns a lot of data, so bear this in mind when processing. It is not recommended to call this more than once every 10 minutes.

## **API** Overview

- 1.) The **Consultant Initial And Follow Up Appointments** endpoint is used to discover details of a single, multiple or all the available consultants on the platform.
- 2.) The **Consultant Details** endpoint is fed a consultant GMC number, and the appointment type required (initial or follow on). It returns basic details around the consultant, and a list of the consultant's availability at the HCA facilities (if any) with the first available time included for each location. It is expected that the caller should store the GUIDs for the consultant and facility which will be passed and used on any further call.
- 3.) The **Consultant Availability** endpoint is used to discover the available slots for a given consultant at a given facility location for a given date range.
- 4.) The Diary Booking endpoint is used to capture the patient details and book a selected appointment slot.

A JSON response is returned for each successful call.

A standard HTTP error status code is returned on a failed call.

## Optionally

The **Booking Appointment Enquiry** endpoint is used to capture the interest of a patient in seeking to book an appointment on an indicative timeline.

## Important notes

- To avoid confusion, all date and time references are given in HCA facility time at the date at the given time, for example an appointment slot on the 20th June 2026 at 14:00 would be represented as 2026-06-20T14:00:00 in the API regardless of the caller's locale and regardless of daylight savings now or at the future time. The date and time is the actual time for the given appointment at the given location. It is important that the caller of the API honours this and they should not pass any UTC times for example time formats with Z endings.
- 2. Note that a slightly non-standard format is used when specifying initial or follow-on appointments in that we expect a 'yes' or 'no' string rather than the conventional true or false Boolean to be passed in parameter arguments.
- 3. The API exposes all slots that are theoretically bookable. HCA has a business rule where **we can't accept booking electronically that are earlier than 2 business days away**, please include logic when offering slots to exclude those on less than 2 business days away, including checks for UK holidays.

## Consultant/InitialAndFollowUpAppointments API

## Description

The InitialAndFollowUpAppointments endpoint is used to discover details of a single, multiple or the universe of available consultants on the platform.

- a. When called with an empty array list in the body, this simple call will return a list of all the consultants on the platform. This call can be used to 'prime' the caller system with the available live consultants. Note (especially on the sandbox environment) there may be some elements of the returned data that have partial data, these are usually records in the preparation stages and are not live consultants, so it is advisable to check the live flag before processing each record further.
- b. When called with an array containing a single or comma separated list of consultant GMC number/s it will return data relating to the supplied list of GMC numbers indicating the first available appointment times for initial and follow on appointment types. This can be useful information for a patient or system to aid and filter from an initial selection of consultants. Note that the order of the result set is not guaranteed to be the same order of the specified request list.

### Format

POST request with X-WebApi-Key header parameter set to the HCA supplied token in the request header.

### Sandbox Base URL

https://hcauks-uat-digital-app.azurewebsites.net/api/Consultant/InitialAndFollowUpAppointments
Prod Base URL

https://hcauks-prod-digital-app.azurewebsites.net/api/Consultant/InitialAndFollowUpAppointments and the second s

### The body should contain

Either

a.) {"consultants" : [] } to request for all consultants in the system

b.) {"consultants" : ["123456", "987654"] } to request for one or more consultants in the system via their GMC number

### Response

.

A successful response from the API would be as follows with the live flag, first appointment date/time for initial and follow on appointments, and includes the consultant initial and follow on slot length in minutes, and some details around when the data was refreshed: (note the mix of live and in-test records)

{} JSON	✓ ▷ Preview
1 {	
2	"availability": [
3	Ę
4	"initial_appointment": null,
5	"follow_appointment": null,
6	"gmc": "6054702",
7	"mnemonic": "THOSIMO",
8	"refreshdate": null,
9	"live": null,
10	"live_status": null,
11	"initial_appointment_minutes": null,
12	"follow_appointment_minutes": null
13	3,
14	£
15	"initial_appointment": null,
16	"follow_appointment": null,
17	"gmc": "4116983",
18	"mnemonic": "HARSALL",
19	"refreshdate": null,
20	"live": false,
21	"live_status": null,
22	"initial_appointment_minutes": null,
23	"follow_appointment_minutes": null
24	3,
25	£
26	"initial_appointment": "2025-01-18T08:00:00Z",
27	"follow_appointment": "2025-01-18T08:00:00Z",
28	"gmc": "4113571",
29	"mnemonic": "GOLDAND",
30	"refreshdate": "2025-01-16T13:00:07Z",
31	"live": true,
32	"live_status": null,
33	"initial_appointment_minutes": 30,
34	"follow_appointment_minutes": 40
35	3,
36	£
37	"initial_appointment": "2025-01-23T12:15:00Z",
38	"follow_appointment": "2025-01-21T14:00:00Z",

## **Consultant/Details API**

#### Description

The **Consultant Details API** is fed a consultant GMC number, and the appointment type required (initial or follow on). It returns basic details around the consultant, and a list of the consultant's availability at the HCA facilities (if any) with the first available time included for each location. It is expected that the caller should store the GUIDs for the consultant (CRMID), and facility (facilityCRMID), and the HCA facility location (facilityLocation) which will be passed and used on further calls.

Format

GET request with X-WebApi-Key header parameter set to the HCA supplied token in the request header.

#### Sandbox Base URL

https://hcauks-uat-digital-app.azurewebsites.net/api/Consultant/Details **Prod Base URL** https://hcauks-prod-digital-app.azurewebsites.net/api/Consultant/Details

#### Variable parameters

#### &HCAConsultantId=<GMC NUMBER>

Either &followonappointment=yes Or

&initialappointment=yes

#### Response

A successful response from the API would be as follows with the first appointment date/time for each location they are available:



## Consultant/Availability API

### Description

The **Consultant Availability API** is used to discover the available slots for a given consultant at a given facility location for a given date range.

## Format

GET request with X-WebApi-Key header parameter set to the HCA supplied token in the request header.

#### Sandbox Base URL

https://hcauks-uat-digital-app.azurewebsites.net/api/Consultant/Availability

Prod Base URL

https://hcauks-prod-digital-app.azurewebsites.net/api/Consultant/Availability

Variable parameters

&DateFrom=<YYYY-MM-DD> e.g. 2025-10-09

&DateTo==<YYYY-MM-DD> e.g. 2025-10-15

&ConsultantGUID=<CRMID> e.g. 66c7e5cf-bd4e-ed11-bba3-000d3ad4e1fb from CRMID in Consultant Details API call

&LocationGUID=<facilityLocation> e.g. 5513ed2a-0a41-ee11-bdf4-6045bd10f40d from facilityLocation in Consultant Details API call

Either &followonappointment=yes Or &initialappointment=yes

## Response

A successful response from the API is a JSON collection of available booking slots that meet the criteria specified. A slot can be selected if isBlocked is false. The startTime should be stored and used to pass to the Create Diary Booking API

```
{
       "dateFrom": "2023-10-09",
"dateTo": "2023-10-15",
       "slots": [
             {
                    "startTime": "2023-10-10T17:30:00",
"endTime": "2023-10-10T18:00:00",
"isBlocked": false
             },
              {
                     "startTime": "2023-10-10T18:00:00",
"endTime": "2023-10-10T18:30:00",
                     "isBlocked": false
              },
                     "startTime": "2023-10-10T18:30:00",
"endTime": "2023-10-10T19:00:00",
                     "isBlocked": false
             },
                     "startTime": "2023-10-10T19:00:00",
"endTime": "2023-10-10T19:30:00",
                     "isBlocked": false
             }
      ]
}
```

## **Booking/DiaryBooking API**

### Description

The **Diary Booking API** is used to capture the patient details and book a selected appointment slot. The system will check availability is OK before confirming booking.

#### Format

POST request with X-WebApi-Key header parameter set to the HCA supplied token in the request header.

#### Sandbox Base URL

https://hcauks-uat-digital-app.azurewebsites.net/api/Booking/DiaryBooking

#### Prod Base URL

https://hcauks-prod-digital-app.azurewebsites.net/api/Booking/DiaryBooking

## **Body definition**

{
 "#CACessiliarit": "GUISD": //GUISD": //GUISD': //GUISD'

#### Response

A successful response from the API will be the ID of the Diary Booking that has been created.

```
{
   "dateFrom": "2023-10-24T17:30:00",
   "dateTo": "",
   "HCAReservationId": "fdf52e6b-345d-ee11-8def-6045bdd2c7db",
   "bookingStatus": "Pending",
   "bookingMessage": "Thank you for your booking request"
}
```

An unsuccessful response from the API will result in a non 200 HTTP status code, and some error text.

## Booking/AppointmentEnguiry API

## Description

The Appointment Enquiry API is used to capture a request by a patient to enquire about booking an appointment. This is an enquiry rather than a firm booking. The HCA contact centre will follow up on the enquiry by contacting the patient from the details they provide in the enquiry.

Format

POST request with X-WebApi-Key header parameter set to the HCA supplied token in the request header.

#### Sandbox Base URL

https://hcauks-uat-digital-app.azurewebsites.net/api/Booking/AppointmentEnguiry

#### **Prod Base URL**

https://hcauks-prod-digital-app.azurewebsites.net/api/Booking/AppointmentEnguiry

## **Body definition**

Endoy definition
{
 function: "Golders Green Outpatients and Diagnottics Centre", /*indicative where should the appointment take place*/
 "distAppointment:" "Winhin 1 neek", /*indicative when should the appointment take place*/
 "timeAppointment:" "Winhing", /*indicative when should the appointment take place*/
 "timeAppointment:" "Winhing", /*indicative when should the appointment take place*/
 "timeAppointment:" "Winhing", /*indicative time that the appointment take place*/
 "time: /*name title*/
 "tift:time": "ZZTESTIFLESTNAME-NEW-API", /*the first name of the patient*/
 "time: "ZZTESTIFLESTNAME-NEW-API", /*the last name of the patient*/
 "dister": "ZZTESTIFLESTNAME-NEW-API", /*the first name of the requestor*/
 "dister": "STNBMETER", /*optional insurance provider of the patient*/
 "insurance: "INSOMPTSU2I", /*optional insurance provider of the patient*/
 "reacondistr:" "TESTING The FORM PLEAE IGNORE", /*the reason for the requestor*/
 "insurance: "INSOMPTSU2I", /*optional insurance policy number of the patient*/
 "reason's:" "INSOMPTSU2I", /*optional insurance policy number of the patient*/
 "reacondistr:" "TESTING The FORM PLEAE IGNORE", /*the reason for this enquiry/
 "reacondistr:" "TESTING The FORM PLEAE IGNORE", /*patient contact preferences for this enquiry/
 "small: true, /*boldean true or false - patient contact preferences for this enquiry/
 "smalles, /*boldean true or false - patient contact preferences for this enquiry/
 "smalles, /*boldean true or false - patient contact preferences for this enquiry/
 "smalles, /*boldean true or false - patient contact preferences for this enquiry/
 "smalles, /*boldean true or false - patient contact preferences for this enquiry/
 "smalles, /*boldean true or false - pa

#### Response

A successful response from the API will be the ID of the Diary Booking that has been created.

```
{
    "dateFrom": "2023-10-24T17:30:00",
"dateTo": "",
    "HCAReservationId": "fdf52e6b-345d-ee11-8def-6045bdd2c7db",
    "bookingStatus": "Pending",
    "bookingMessage": "Thank you for your booking request"
}
```

An unsuccessful response from the API will result in a non 200 HTTP status code, and some error text.

## **Referral Letters**

Description

Both the **Appointment Enquiry API** and the **Diary Booking API** have been extended to allow the capture of a referral pdf as a new optional field on the post bodies.

An optional new property field named base64ReferralFile is included as follows:

## Enquiry form

# ••

"consultantTopSpecialty": "Dermatology", "hiddenFormInstance": "b26089db-c0d1-4cb5-81c5-621e2cb1c8b1",

"base64ReferralFile": "name:Test

Doc.pdf,data:application/pdf;base64,JVBERi0xLjcNCiW1tbW1DQoxIDAgb2JqDQo8PC9UeXBlL0NhdGFsb2cvUGF nZXMgMi .....

## **Booking form**

...

```
"insuranceAuthorisationCode": "",
"gpreferral": true,
```

"base64ReferralFile": "name:Test

Doc.pdf,data:application/pdf;base64,JVBERi0xLjcNCiW1tbW1DQoxIDAgb2JqDQo8PC9UeXBlL0NhdGFsb2cvUGF nZXMgMiAwIFIvTGFuZyh ....

Essentially, for "base64ReferralFile": the file name is passed at the start of the data for the field e.g. name:xxxxx.pdf followed by a comma followed by the format - which is always be data:application/pdf;base64,

The base64, is followed by a Base64 encoded blob that contains the pdf file.

Note that the total length of the message is limited to 1MB at present.

Example client side React – Base64 file capture

title="Referral upload"

We are using a fileInput input field and the file reader FileReader - Web APIs | MDN feature...

```
const [base64ReferralFile, setbase64ReferralFile] = useState<string>(");
...
interface IExtendedReader {
    file: File;
}
...
<input
    type="file"
    id="fileInput"</pre>
```

15

```
accept="application/pdf"
 onChange={(evt) => {
  const file =
   evt &&
   evt.target &&
   evt.target.files &&
   evt.target.files[0] != null
     ? evt.target.files[0]
     : null;
  if (file) {
   const reader = new FileReader();
   reader.onload = function (evt) {
     if (evt && evt.target && evt.target.result) {
      const readerX = this as IExtendedReader &
       FileReader;
      const base64String = evt.target.result.toString();
      setbase64ReferralFile(
       'name:' + readerX.file.name + ',' + base64String
      );
    }
   };
   const readerX: IExtendedReader & FileReader =
     Object.assign(reader, {
      file: file,
     });
   readerX.readAsDataURL(file);
  }
}]
/>
```